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lndeoendent Auditor's Report

To The Honorable County Judge and County Commissioners
Palo Pinto County, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Palo Pinto County, Texas (County) as of and for the year ended September 30,
2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the fìnancial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signiflcant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Basis for Qualified Opinions on Governmental Activities and General Fund

As fully described in Note 13 to the financial statements, the County has not recorded the receivables from the judicial
assessments at September 30,2O14 in the accompanying financial statements of the Governmental Activities and General
Fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that these receivables should be
recorded, which would increase the assets and fund balance/net position and change the revenues in the Governmental
Activities and General Fund. The amount by which this departure would affect the assets, fund balance/net position, and
revenues of the Governmental Activities and General Fund has not been determined.

Qualified Opiníons

ln our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the "Basis for Qualifìed Opinions on Governmental Activities
and General Fund" paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Governmental Activities and General Fund of the County, as of September 30, 2014, and the
changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.
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Unmodified Opinions

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of each major fund other than the General Fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of
September 30,2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows forthe yearthen
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Req u i red S u ppl eme nta ry I nform ati on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and
Analysis, budgetary comparison information, and funding schedules on the Texas County and District Retirement System
and Palo Pinto County Retiree Health Care Plan be presented to supplement the basic fìnancial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufücient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
County's basic financial statements. The combining financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented
for additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Sfafes, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining fìnancial statements and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
fìnancial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic flnancial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. ln our opinion, the combining financial statements and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic fìnancial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 20, 2015, on our
consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the County's internal control over
fi nancial reporting and compliance.

åaçr, Prraltrw*.,, WZi Ç+"r^:r.r,

Wichita Falls, Texas
January 20,20'15
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of Palo Pinto County, we offer readers of the Palo Pinto County's financial
statements this narrative overview of the financial activities of Palo Pinto County for the fiscal
year ended September 30,2014

Financial Highlights

The assets of Palo Pinto County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by
$20,135,404 (net position). Of this amount, $7,418,310 (unrestricted net position) may be used to
meet the County's ongoing obligations.

As of the close of the fiscal year, the Palo Pinto County's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $9,981 ,172. OÍ this total amount, $7,645,830 (68 percent) is available for
spending at the County's discretion (unassþned fund balance).

At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund is $7,645,830 or 55
percent of total General Fund expenditures.

The County's total long-term oblígations increased $174,809 (8 percent) during the fiscal year.
The increase is due to an increase in post-employment benefit obligation of $255,270, and
retirements of debt in the amount of $73,333. ln addition, compensated absences decreased by
g7,128.

Overview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Palo Pinto County's basic
financial statements. The County's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statemenfs are
designed to provide a broad overview of Palo Pinto County's finances, in a manner similar to
private sector business.

The Sfafement of Net Position presents information on all of Palo Pinto County's assets and
liabilities, with the difference reported as nef position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as an indicator of whether the County's financial position is improving or
deteriorating.

The Sfafement of Activifies presents information showing how the County's net position changed
during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the event causing the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future periods (e.9.,
uncollected taxes).
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The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 9-10 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Palo Pinto
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of Palo Pinto County can be
divided into three categories: governmentalfunds, internal service, and fiduciary funds.

Governmentalfunds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial focus is on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spenda ble resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmentalfunds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long{erm impact of the County's near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Palo Pinto County maintains twenty-four individual governmental funds. lnformation is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, which is considered
to be a major fund. Data from the other twenty{hree governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. lndividual fund data for each of these non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining funds elsewhere in this report.

Palo Pinto County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund.

The basic governmental financial statements can be found on pages 11-15 of this report.

The County adopted a Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) Plan and it is accounted for as
an lnternal Service Fund. The lnternal Service Fund's financial statements are at pages 16 - 18
of this report.

Fíduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County's own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The combined fiduciary fund Sfafement of Fiduciary Assefs and Liabilities can be found on page
19 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the audited financial statements.

The notes can be found on pages 20-37 of this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. ln the case of Palo Pinto County, assets exceeded liabilities by $ 20,135 ,404 at
September 30,2014.

The largest portion of the County's net position (58 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e9., land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although Palo Pinto County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Net Position

Government Activities

2014 2013

Current and Other Assets

CapitalAssefs

TotalAssets

Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position:
Net lnvestment in Capital Assefs
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

$ 10,968,910

12,242,494
$ 9,697,965

11 982.281

$ 23,211 ,404 $ 21,680,246

$ 705,225
2,370,775

$ 489,406

2,195,966

$ 11 ,414,281
936,050

6,644,543

$ 3,076,000 $ 2,685,372

$ 11,747,827

969,267

7 418 310

$ 20,135,404 $ 18,994,874

Restricted net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions. Unrestricted
net position may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the fiscal year, Palo Pinto County is able to report positive balances in net position,
for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental activities.
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Ghanges in Net Position

Government Activities

2014 2013

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Seryices

Operating Grants and Contributions

Capital Grants and Contributions

General Revenues:
Propefty laxes
Other Taxes
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses:
General Government
Adm inistration of J ustice
Public Safety

Corrections and Rehabilitation

Health and Human Seryices
Comm u nity and Economic Development
I nfra stru ctu re a n d E n v i ro n m e ntal Serylces

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Net Position - 10n/13

Net Position - 9ß0n4

$ 14,981,675 $ 14,479,776

$ 3,021,164

278,186
220,245

9,487,758
I,670,831

303,491

$ 2,874,682
1,200,477

8,549,379

1,631,955

223,243

$ 3,750,991

1,956,827

2,750,857
2,207,992

207,013
288,338

2,679,127

$ 3,843,297

1,880,044

3,547,541
2,170,303

203,996
278,899

2, 343,937

$ 13,841,145 $ 14,268 ,017

$ 1,140,530

18,994,874

g 211,759

18, 783,115

$ 20,135,404 $ 18.994 ,874

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

Governmental funds. The focus of Palo Pinto County's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. ln particular, unassigned
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for
spending at the end of a fiscal year.
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The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Palo Pinto County. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund is $7,645,830 while the total fund
balance reached $8,681,495. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total General Fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 58.7 percent of total General Fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 66.7 percent of total General Fund
expenditures.

The fund balance of Palo Pinto County's General Fund increased by $1,133,204 during the
current fiscal year. Key factor in this growth is that ad valorem taxes increased by $955,611 due
to increased property valuations.

The Capital Projects Funds have a total fund balance of $330,836 all of which is committed for
future capital projects. This represents a decrease of $213,434 from 2013. lt is the intentof the
County to use these funds for future growth and expansion needs of the County.

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $0. The Fund is used to account for the
Texas Capital Fund loan. The monthly lease payments received by the County are immediately
paid toward the loan balance.

Palo Pinto County's Special Revenue Funds have a combined restricted fund balance of
$962,616 which represents an increase of $28,778 primarily due to increases in the Commissary
Fund and the Sheriff's Forfeiture Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The final amended budget showed an increase of $224,002 (1.6 percent) over the original budget
which was for various grants, contributions, and insurance proceeds.

It is the practice of the County to budget very conservatively. Actual revenues were 2.5 percent
higher than budgeted. Licenses, Fee and Fines were .37 percent higher than budgeted. Ad
valorem taxes were 2.3 percent higher than budgeted. Sales tax revenue was 10 percent higher
than budgeted after recovering from several years of sutfering from slower retail sales and a poor
local economy. Actual operating expenditures were 9 percent lower than budgeted. This can be
attributed primarily to lower than anticipated costs in both general operations and road and bridge
operations.

Gapital Asset and Debt Administration

Capitalassefs. Palo Pinto County's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as
of September 30,2014 amounts to fi12,242,494 (net of depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings and building improvements, other improvements, transportation,
machinery, equipment and other assets, infrastructure and construction-in-progress.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

r The addition of infrastructure in the form of major road improvements, totaling $247,456.
o The purchase of a number of law enforcement vehicles for $241,275.
r The purchase of several vehicles and heavy equipment for road and bridge operations

totaling $180,202.
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Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on page 28 of this
report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the fiscal year, the County had total long-term obligations of
92,370,775 outstanding. This debt is 100% backed by the full faith and credit of the County.

Additional information on the County's long-term debt can be found in Note 7 on pages 29-30
of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets

At the end of the fiscal year the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund was $7,645,830.
The County appropriated $694,697 of this amount for spending in the 2013-14 fiscal year budget
for road and bridge operations, and to fund several contingency line items in the General Fund for
unexpected emergencies. lt is intended that the use of available fund balance will lessen the
need to raise taxes during the 2015 fiscalyear.

Requests for lnformation

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Palo Pinto County's finances.
Questions concerning information in this report should be addressed to the County Auditor, Palo
Pinto County, P.O. Box 159, Palo Pinto, Texas 76484.

Gauthier, Stephen J. Governmental Accountinq, Auditing, and Financial
Reoorting, Chicago: Government Finance Officers Association ,2001

I
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EXHIBIT A.I

PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

Assets
Cash
lnvestments
Receivables:

Property taxes, net
Sales taxes
Occupancy taxes
Accounts

Due from fiduciary
Prepaid expenses
lnventory
Capitalassets, net

Totalassets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to fiduciary
Due to others
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Governmental
Activities

$ 1,272,026
8,681,799

182,034
281,854
31,954

146,823
127,044
182,186
63,190

12,242,494
23,211,404

514,780
142,461
24,346
23,638

229,061
2 't41 714
3,076,000

11,747 ,827
969,267

7 310

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A-2

PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2014

Prooram Revenues

Net (Expense)
Revenue and

Changes in

Net Pos¡t¡on

Funct¡ons/Programs
Governmental Activities:

General Government
Administration of Justice
Public Safety
Correct¡ons and Rehabilitation
Health and Human Services
Community and Economic Development
lnfrastructure and Environmental Services
Total governmental activities

Expenses
Charges for

Services

$ 1,296,820
710,062
64,706

133,000

816,576

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Conlributions
Governmental

Activities

$ 3,750,991

1,956,827
2,750,857
2,207,992

207,013
288,338

2,679,'t27

$

157,342
120,844 r 9,889

200,356

$ (2,454,171)
(1,089,423)
(2,545,418)
(2,074,992)

(207,013)
(288,338)

(1 ,662,1 95)

$

$ 13,841,145 $ 3,021,164 $ 278,186 $ 220,245 (10,321,550)

General revenues and spec¡al ¡tem:

Property taxes, lev¡ed for general purposes

Sales taxes
Hotel/motel taxes
M¡xed beverage taxes
lnvestment earnings
Miscellaneous

Special item - gain on sale of capital assets
Total general revenues and special item

Change in net pos¡t¡on

Net position - beginn¡ng
Net pos¡t¡on - end¡ng

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

't0

9,487,758
I,533,386

99,1 84
38,261

104,769
160,476
38,246
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

ASSETS

Cash
lnvestments
Receivables, net:

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Occupancy taxes
Accounts

Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
lnventory

Total assets

LIAB¡LITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to others
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Unavailable property taxes

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted

Committed
Assigned

Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances

$ 9,523,460 $ 1,320,317 g 10,843,777

$ 486,682
140,895

9,454
22,900

$ 18,336
1,566

$ 505,018
142,461

9,454
23,638

659,931 20,640 680,571

182 034 182,034

General
Fund

$ 503,282
8,083,964

182,034
281,854

131,867
95,843

1 82,1 86
62,430

244,616
5,79',1

71,425
713,833

7,645,830

8,681,495

Other
Governmental

Funds

31,954
14,956
16,309

760

962,716
336,201

1,299,677

EXHIBIT A.3

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 1,161,785

8,681,799

't82,034
281,854

31,954
146,823
112,152
182,186

63, I 90

245,376
968,507
407,626
713,833

7,645,830

9,981,172

,503

,835

658

597
$

760

738

$ 9,523,460 $ 1,320,317 g 10,843,777

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30,2014

Total fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit A-3)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position (Exhibit A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore not reported in the funds. Capital assets at year-end consist of:

Gross capital assets
Related accumulated depreciation

Property tax receivables are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are deferred inflows of resources in the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Note payable
Accrued compensated absences
Net other post-employment benefit obligation

The County uses an internal service fund to operate a health reimbursement
account (HRA) for the benefit of all of eligible employees of the County. The
assets and liabilities are included in the governmental activities in the statement
of net position. The net effect of this consolidation is to increase net postion.

Total net position - governmental activities (Exhibit A-1)

$ 22,961,883
10,719,389

494,667
224,394

1,651,714

EXH¡BIT A4

$ 9,981 ,172

12,242,494

182,034

(2,370,775)

100,479

$ 20,135,404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

General
Fund

Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Occupancy tax
Mixed beverage tax
Licenses, fees and fines
Federal and state grants
lnmate revenue
Commissary revenue
lnterest earned
Other revenue

Total revenues 14,189,714

$ 9,484,842
1,533,386

38,261
2,515,989

237,777
78,889

94,345
206,225

Other
Governmental

Funds

$

99,184

244,391
227,856

41,152
10,01 I

127,792
750,386

294,416
27,943

5,048

136,770

48,822
23,333
41,962

76,600

103,650

172,373

$ 9,484,842
1,533,386

99,184
38,261

2,760,380
465,633

78,889
41,152

104,356
334,017

14,940,100

EXHIBIT A.5
(Page I of2)

Total
Governmental

Funds

373,646
294,416
27,943
43,890

412,519
235,399
231,687
420,021
165,882
92,624

114,360
48,822
23,333

310,306
201,144
190,823
67,460

105,642
2,954,317

10,000
103,650
104,160
217,588

1,659,04ô
443,736
145,14'l
565,826

Expenditures
29th District Court
Capital projects
Commissary
Commissioner's Court
Constable
County Attorney
County Auditor
County Clerk
County Court
County Extension Service
County Treasurer
Courthouse security
Debt service - principal
District Attorney
District Clerk
Election Administration
Emergency Management
Emergency Medical & Health Services
General operations
Health services
Hotel/moteltax
lnformation Technology
lnmate contract
Jail and detention
Justice of the Peace
Narcotics Unit
Public Works

373,646

43,890
412,519
230,351
231,687
283,251
165,882
92,624

114,360

268,344
201,144
190,823
67,460

105,642
2,877,717

10,000

104,160
217,588

1,659,046
443,736
145,141
393,453

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

General
Fund

438,506
545,959
592,364
548,369

1,702,174
508,376

52,040

Other
Governmental

Funds

3,030

3,527

937,474

(187,088)

4,125

4 125

(182,e63)

1,482,640

EXHIBIT A.5
(Page 2 of 2)

Total
Governmental

Funds

982,374

112,867
(145,000)

(32,133)

950,241

9,030,931

438,506
545,959
592,364
548,369

1,705204
508,376

3,527
52,040

13,957,726

Road and Bridge:
Precinct No. 1

Precinct No. 2
Precinct No. 3
Precinct No. 4

Sheriff
Tax Assessor-Collector
Vending Expenditures
Veteran's Administration

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other sources and (uses):
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfer out

Total other sources and (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

13,020,252

't08,742
(1 45,000)

(36,258)

1,133,204

7,548,291

$ 8,681,495 $ 1,299,677 $ 9,981,172

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit A-5)

Amounts reported 'Íor governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit A-2)
are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. The net difference between the two is as follows:

Capital outlay during the year
Depreciation expense for the year

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets are recorded as revenues when received in
the governmental funds. ln the Statement of Activities, the difference between the
proceeds and the book value of the capital asset is reported as a gain (loss) from sale.

Because property tax receivables will not be collected for several months after the
County's fiscal year ends, they are not considered 'available' revenues and are
deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds Deferred inflows of
resources increased by this amount.

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. The long-term
debt principal paid during the year was as follows:

Time warrants
Note payable

lncluded in long-term debt are obligations for accrued vacation leave and the net other
post-employment benefit obligation. The changes in these obligations are not included
in the governmental fund financial statements, but are included in the government-wide
financial statements. The change in these long-term obligations was:

lnterest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities differs from the amount reported
in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds

when it is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources ln the Statement
of Activities, however, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless
of when it is due. The decrease in accrued interest is as follows:

Accrued ¡nterest at September 30, 2013
Accrued interest at September 30,2O14

The County uses an internal service fund to operate a health reimbursement
account (HRA) for the benefit of all of eligible employees of the County. The
change in net position of the internal service service fund is reported with the
governmental activities. The net effect of this consolidation is an increase of
net position.

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A-2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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$ 1,317,089
982,255

EXHIBIT 4.6

$ 950,241

334,834

(74,621)

2,916

73,333

(248,142)

1,490

100 479

50,000
23,333

1,490

$ 1,140,530



EXHIBIT 4.7

PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

Assets
Cash

Totalassets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

Net Position
Unrestricted
Total net position

Health
Reimbursement
Arrangement

$ t 10,241
110,241

I 762

100,479
$ 100,479

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A.8

PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND GHANGES
IN NET POSITION .INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

Operating revenues
None

Operating expenses:
Reimbursements
Administrative fees

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Non-operating income:
lnterest income

Transfers in

Change in net position

Total net position - beginning
Total net position - ending

Health
Reimbursement

Arrangement

$

36,744
I 190

44,934

(44,934)

413

145,000

100,479

$ 100,479

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEIIBER 30,2OI4

Gash flows from operating activities
Cash paid to employees for health reimbursements
Cash paid to third party administrator

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Transfers in from other funds
lnterest earnings

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Gash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Reconciliation of loss from operations to net cash
used by operating activities:
Operating loss

Effect of change in current assets and liabilities:
lncrease in accounts payable

Net cash used by operating activities

EXHIBIT A-9

Health
Reimbursement

Arrangement

$ (26,982)
(8,190)

(35,172)

145,000
413

145,413

110,241

$ 110,241

$ (44,934)

I 762

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A.IO

PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES. FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Assets
Cash
lnvestments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds

Totalassets

Liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to others

Total liabilities

Agency
Funds

$ 1,633,009
527,839

2,459
24 346

$ 2,187,653

$ 127,044
2,060,609

$z 187 653

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The County of Palo Pinto, Texas (County) was created by the Act of Legislature on August 27,1856, and
operates as specified under the Constitution of the State of Texas and statutes which provide for a
Commissioners Court consisting of the County Judge and four Commissioners, one from each of four
geographical precincts. The County Judge is elected for a term of four years and the Commissioners for four
year staggered terms. Other major County elective officers include the County Clerk, District Clerk, County
Tax Assessor-Collector and County Treasurer. The County Auditor is appointed for a term of two years and
serves at the will of the District Judge, whose court is located in Palo Pinto County. The 2010 census
population for the County was 28,111 and the area covered is approximately 949 square miles. The
unincorporated community of Palo Pinto is the County Seat. The County provides the following public
services: Public Safety - Sheriff's Department and Jail Detention, Tax Assessing and Collecting, Sanitation,
Fire, Emergency Medical Services, Public Records, Criminal and Civil Prosecution, Road and Bridge
Maintenance and General Operations.

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standards setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The government's significant accounting policies are described below:

A. Reporting Entity

ln evaluating the County for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential
component units. The evaluation was made by applying the criteria set forth in generally accepted
accounting principles for inclusion of component units with a reporting entity. The major criterion for
including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise
oversight responsibility over the unit. The most significant manifestation of this ability to exercise
oversight responsibility includes, but is not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation
of management, the ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The
other criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting
entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the County is able to
exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of these criteria, there were no potential
component units included in the reporting entity as defined by GASB 14, "The Reporting Entity", as
amended by GASB 39 and 61.

There are no component units which satisfy requirements for blending or discrete presentation within the
County's financial statements. Accordingly, the basic financial statements present the County only.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
changes in net position) report information on all the non-fiduciary activities of the County. For the most
part, the effects of interfund activity have been removed from these statements.

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given
function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
requirements or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though the
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
SEPTEMBER 30,2014

C. Measurement Focus, Basrs of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Government fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expendítures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.

The County reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. lt accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The County reports the following nonmajor governmental funds reported as 'Other Governmental Funds'

The Specral Revenue Funds account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

The Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilitres.

The Deóú Servlce Funds are used to account for the accumulation of funds for the periodic payment of
principal and interest on long-term debt.

The County reports the following internal service fund:

The Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) Plan was established under lnternal Revenue Code
Section 106 for reimbursing eligible County employees for the cost of certain eligible medical
expenses incurred by them, their spouses and eligible dependents.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Agency Funds are used to report cash and investments and other resources held in a purely custodial
capacity (assets equal liabilities). Agency funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary
investment and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations or other
governments. The assets are held in a trustee or agent capacity and are not available to support
County programs; therefore, these funds are not included in the government-wide financial
statements.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
SEPTEMBER 30,20I4

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
lnternally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes, miscellaneous revenue, and interest income.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
require the use of estimates by management that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

D. Financial Statement Amounts

1. Deposits and lnvestments

The County's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and
short{erm investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper,
corporate bonds, repurchase agreements and investment pools.

lnvestments for the County are reported at fair value. The authorized investment pools operate in
accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same
as the fair value of the pool shares.

2. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other
funds."

All trade and property tax receivables, including those for the County, are shown net of an allowance
for uncollectibles.

Property taxes are levied by October 1. Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if
not paid before February I of the year following the year in which imposed. On January 1 of each
year a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties and interest
ultimately imposed.

3. Uncollected Taxes Receivable

The office of the Tax Assessor-Collector is under contract to eighteen (18) different taxing entities. lt
is the responsibility of the Tax Assessor-Collector to collect the taxes for the various taxing districts
and then to remit the tax, including any penalty and interest, less a 1% fee of current taxes and 7o/o ot
delinquent taxes, to the tax district, except for the Palo Pinto County Education District, in which the
Tax Assessor-Collector receives all penalties collected. The amount recorded as investment in
uncollected taxes represents the total taxes receivable for the eighteen districts and the Palo Pinto
County Education District.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE F|NANG|AL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

Furniture & Fixtures
Vehicles
Equipment
Heavy Equipment
Buildings and lmprovements
Other lmprovements
Public Domain lnfrastructure

4. lnventories and Prepaid ltems

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. lnventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financialstatements.

5. Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources

ln addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. For the year ended September 30,2014, the County has
no items that qualify for reporting in this category.

ln addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The County has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this
category, property taxes receivable. Property taxes receivable are unavailable and therefore cannot
be recognized as revenue in the governmental funds until they are received.

6. CapitalAssets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.9. roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. The County defines capital assets as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the time received.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset, or materially
extend assets' lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and ímprovements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
lnterest costs on fixed assets are not capitalized. lnterest is charged to the Debt Service Fund for
assets acquired with tax notes. For assets purchased under capital lease agreements, interest is
expensed in the fund responsible for making the lease payments.

Capital assets of the primary government are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

7 years
3 - 15 years
5 - 7 years
8 - 30 years
5 - 40 years

10 - 20 years
15 - 30 years
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

7. CompensatedAbsences

It is the County's policy to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused
vacation and compensated absences, which will be paid to employees upon separation from the
County's service. ln governmental funds, the cost of vacation and compensated absences is
recognized when payments are made to employees. A long-term liability of $224,394 of accrued
vacation and compensated absences at September 30,2014 has been recorded in the government-
wide statements, representing the County's commitment to fund such costs from future operations.
The department for which the employee works is charged when payments for vacation or
compensated absences are paid. The County's sick leave policy provides for an unlimited
accumulation of earned sick leave. The County has no obligation for the accumulated sick leave until
it is actually taken; therefore, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

8. Long-Term Obligations

ln the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the governmental activities statement of net position. lssuance costs
associated with long-term debt are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances and issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not
in spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such
as notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because
of a formal action by the County's Commissioners' Court. Committed amounts cannot be used for
any other purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of
formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate
due process by the governing board. Commitments are typically done through adoption and
amendment of the budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted balances in that
the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the County intends to use for a specific purpose,

but that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. lntent may be stipulated

by the governing board or by an official or body to which the governing board delegates the authority.

Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt

service or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type

or the fund's primary purpose. Assignments within the General Fund convey that the intended use of

those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the County

itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent

for any purpose. Only the General Fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other

governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classification because of overspending for

specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance

is available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is

incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the County

considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally

unassigned funds.

2. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures", violations of

finance-related legal and contractual provisions are reported below, along with actions taken to address

such violations:

For the year ended September 30, 2014, the County had no violations of finance-related legal or

contractual provisions.

B. Deficit Fund Balance or Net Position of lndividual Funds

As of September 30, 2014, there were no funds with a deficit fund balance or net position

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Deposlfs

Deposits, except for those held in trust by the County and District Clerks, were held with the contracted

depository banks in interest bearing accounts which were secured at the balance sheet date by FDIC

coverage and by pledged government securities in the name of the depository banks. At September 30,

2014, the carrying amount of the County's deposits was $9,953,825 and the balance per the bank was
g10,139,647. lncluded in the carrying amount and bank balance are certificates of deposit (recorded as

investments) totaling $8,681,799.

The County and District Clerks hold deposit accounts and investments as trustees under court orders in

various banks. The accounts are styled for the benefit of the individual beneficiaries and do not actually

belong to the County. The investments consist of interest bearing demand deposits and certificates of

deposit whose carrying value and market value are the same. The carrying amounts of agency funds held

bytheCountyatSeptember30,2}l4were$2,l60,E4Sandthebalanceperthebankwas$2,160,848. All

deposits and investments were secured by FDIC coverage.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE F¡NANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

B. lnvestments

The County is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds lnvestment Act (Act) to
adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written; primarily emphasize
safety of principal and liquidity; address investment diversification, yield, maturity and the quality and
capability of investment management; include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the
investing entity's funds may be invested; and the maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual
investment owned by the entity.

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as a
part of the audit of the financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices,
management reports, and establishment of appropriate policies, the County adhered to the requirements
of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the County were in accordance with local policies.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the County. These include, with
certain restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas, (2)
certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase
agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutualfunds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment
contracts, and (10) common trust funds.

The County's ínvestments at September 30,2014 are shown below:

Weighted
Maturity
(Months)

Fair
Valuelnvestments

Certificates of Deposit

C. Analysis of Specific Deposit and lnvestmenf Rr'sks

7.00 $8,681,799

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the County was exposed to the following
specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

1. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of
credit risk. At year end, the County was not significantly exposed to credit risk.

2. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the
deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but
not in the County's name.

lnvestment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not
registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the
counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the County's name.

At year end, the County was not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE F|NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)
SEPTEMBER 30,2014

3. Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer
At year end, the County was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

4. lnterest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At
year end, the County was not exposed to interest rate risk.

5. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end,
the County was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

D. lnvestment Accounting Policy

The County's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-
earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-earning investment
contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected
by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All
other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher
value. The term "short-term" refers to investments which have a remaining term of one year or less at time
of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means that the investment's value does not vary with market
interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-
earning investment contracts.

4. PROPERTYTAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January I of the prior year. Taxes are levied on
October I and do not begin to accrue interest until February 1. The County is permitted by the Municipal
Finance Law of the State of Texas to levy taxes (exclusive of those amounts levied to service long{erm debt)
up to $.80 per $100 of assessed valuation for general services, permanent improvements, road and bridge and
jury fund purposes. The combined tax rate to finance general government (exclusive of long-term debt service
and Special Road & Bridge) for the year ended September 30,2014, was $0.35200 per $100 valuation.

No taxes were levied for the payment of principal and interest related to long-term debt as the bonded debt
was paid in full in the prior year.

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Fund are based upon historical experience in
collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written off, but
the County is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas
Legislature.

At September 30,2014, net property taxes receivable is calculated as follows:

Gross property taxes receivable
Allowance for uncollectible taxes

$409,597
( 227.563)

Net property taxes receivable
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Of the $409,597 of property taxes receivable at September 30, 2014, the County expects to collect
approximately $160,000 within a year. This is similar to the amount of delinquent taxes received in previous
years.

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30,2014 was as follows

Governmental Activities: Balance Balance

9t30t1410t1t13 Additions Retirements Transfers
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land ç224,820 $ 39,000 $ $ -
Construction in progress 104.500 217.666 _________:_ ( 34,625)

Total capital assets not be¡ng

depreciated 329,320 256.666 __________:_ ( 34,625)

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 8,627,748 366,606 - 34,625
Equipment 3,586,814 86,528 106,565 ( 8,807)
Vehicles 2,745,250 354,530 445,948 8,807
lnfrastructure 6,908,175 252.759 ____________:_

Total capital assets being
depreciated 21.867.987 1.060.423 552,513 34,625

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 4,891 ,279 247,731
Equipment 2,004,534 168,089 52,481 ( 593)
Vehicles 2,064,401 224,884 425,411 593
lnfrastructure 1.254.812 341,551 _

Total accumulated depreciation 10,215.026 982.255 477.892

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 11.652,961 78,168 74,621 34.625

Governmental activities capital
assets, net $aæ82281 $__334331 $_14ß21 $ -

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:
GeneralGovernment $ 89,376
Administration of Justice 8,655
Public Safety 168,514
Corrections and Rehabilitation 132,182
Health and Human Services 894
Community and Economic Development 27,691
lnfrastructure and Environmental Services 554,943

Totalgovernmental depreciation $982255

551.361

22.410.522

1 1 ,691 ,1 33

$12242A94

$ 263,820
287.541

9,028,979
3,557,970
2,662,639

7,160,934
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6. INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES

A. Balances due to and from other funds at September 30,2014 was as follows:

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount Reason

General Fund Fiduciary Funds $ 95,843 Short-term loan
Other Governmental Funds Fiduciary Funds 16,309 Short-term loan
Fiduciary Funds General Fund 9,454 Short-term loan
Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary Funds 14.892 Short-term loan

Total $13fu198

All of the above amounts are expected to be repaid within one year.

B. Transfers in and out during the year ended September 30,2014 were as follows:

Transfer From Transfer To Amount Reason

General Fund lnternal Service Fund $145,000 Establish new fund

7. LONG.TERM OBLIGATIONS

The County issued time warrants and notes payable to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities. These issues are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the County.

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended September 30,2014 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
Governmental Activities 10to1t13 Additions Retirements 09t30t14 One Year

Time warrants
Note payable

Compensated absences
Net other post-employment

benefìt obligation

$ 50,000
518,000
231,522

$

244,769

255.270

$ 50,000
23,333

251,897
494,667
224,394

4,667
224,394

$ $

1.396.444 1.651.714

Total long-term liabilities -
governmentalactivities $2;195-966 $5O0O39 $325230 92.U9J15 $229*0ô1

For the governmental activities, compensated absences and other post-employment benefit obligations are
generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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Total debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-24
2025-29
2030-32

Principal
$ 4,667

28,000
28,000
28,000
28,000

140,000
140,000
98,000

lnterest Total
$ 4,667

28,000
28,000
28,000
28,000

140,000
140,000
98,000

$

Totals $!tgt66z $----------- $491.662

Time Warrants

Time warrants, payable to the Comanche National Bank, at September 30,2014 consisted of the following:

Purpose
Original Date Final lnterest Balance
Amount lssued Maturity Rate 9130114

Construction of the Chestnut
Mountain Road $250,000 12t23t10 10t31t13 3.250/o $ -

Note Payable

The note payable to the Texas Department of Rural Community Affairs is part of the Texas Department of
Agriculture's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) known as the Texas Capital Fund. The County
borrowed $560,000 interest-free to purchase a facility which was leased to a business. The lease proceeds
will be used to repay the loan. The monthly lease is for $2,333 which began in June 2012, but has been
deferred from August 1 , 2014 to July 31, 2015.

Original
Amount

Date
lssued

Final
Maturitv

lnterest
Rate

Balance
9t30t14Purpose

Purchase and lease facility as
part of the CDBG Texas Capital
Fund program $560,000 05t23t11 04t15t32 0.00% $494,667

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
business interruption; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health benefits; and other claims
of various nature. The County participates in the Texas Association of Counties lntergovernmental Risk Pool
(Pool) which provides protection for risks of loss. Premiums are paid to the Pool which retains the risk of loss
beyond the County's policy deductibles. Any losses reported but unsettled or incurred and not reported, are
believed to be insignificant to the County's basic financial statements. For the last three years, there have
been no significant reductions of insurance coverage or insurance settlements in excess of insurance
coverage.
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9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Federal and State Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such agencies.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.
The amounts, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Litigation

ln the normal course of providing services to the public, the County from time-to-time is subjected to litigation
claims. The County defends itself against such claims based on internal assessment of liability and risk.
Litigation expenses are recorded as expenditures in the period when litigation services are rendered and
damages are accrued as expenditures when determined to be probable and when amounts can reasonably be
estimated. The County cannot readily determine the outcome of the litigation at this time; consequently, no
liabilities have been accrued in the financial statements relative to litigation in process at September 30,2014.

Texas Department of Transportation Contract

On December 21,200Q the County entered into a contract with the Texas Department of Transportation
(TXDOT) for the replacement of six bridges in Palo Pinto County. Three bridges have been completed. The
total cost of the remaining three bridges is estimated at $1,957,018 with the County contributing a 10% match
of $195,702. The County's match may be made in cash or in-kind. The County's match is required to be
made no more than three years from the date TXDOT lets contracts for the construction project. As of
September 30,2014, the three remaining bridges had not been let.

Post-employment Benefits

A. Health and Supplemental lnsurance

Effective October 1,2002, the County began offering poslemployment benefits, subject to appropriations,
for monthly healthcare premiums for qualified retirees under 65 years of age. ln addition, the County pays
a portion of the cost of a Medicare supplement for retirees over 65 years of age. Effective January 1,

2006, the County's contribution amount is 35% of the supplement premium. At year end there were
eleven participants receiving healthcare benefits and eight participants receiving Medicare supplemental
benefits. The cost to the County for retiree healthcare benefits was $70,240 and the cost for retiree
Medicare supplemental benefits was $7,531 and is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.

B. Life lnsurance Benefit

The County participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group term life insurance plan
operated by the Texas County & District Retirement System (TCDRS). This plan is referred to as the
Group Term Life Fund (GTLF). This optional plan provides group term life insurance coverage to current
eligible employees and, if elected by employers, to retired employees. The coverage provided to retired
employees is a post-employment benefit other than pension benefits (OPEB). Retired employees are
insured for $5,000.

The GTLF is a separate trust administered by the TCDRS Board of Trustees. TCDRS issues a publicly
available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the GTLF. This report may be obtained by writing to the Texas County &
District Retirement System, P.O. Box 2034, Austin,TX78768-2034, or by calling 800-823-7782-
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Each participating employer contributes to the GTLF at a contractually required rate. An annual actuarial
valuation is performed and the contractual rate is determined using the unit credit method for providing
one-year term life insurance. The County's contributions to the GTLF, attributable to retired employees,
for the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $10,137, $8,919, and $7 ,220, respectively,
which equaled the contractually required contributions each year.

IO. RETIREMENT PLAN

A. Plan Description

The County provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for all of its full-time employees through a
nontraditional, defined benefit pension plan in the statewide TCDRS. The Board of Trustees of TCDRS is
responsible for the administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer public employee retirement
system consisting of 656 nontraditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS in the aggregate issues a
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis. The CAFR is available upon
written request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-2034.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the County, within the options available in the
Texas state statutes governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act). Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 8 or
more years of service or with 30 years of service regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and
years of service equals 75 or more. Members are vested after 8 years of service but must leave their
accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any employer-financed benefit. Members who withdraw
their personal contributions in a lump sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by the County.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and
the County-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the governing
body of the County within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the resulting
benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the County's commitment to contribute. At
retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum of the employee's
accumulated contributions and the County-financed monetary credits to a monthly annuity using annuity
purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.

B. Funding Policy

The County has elected the annually determined contribution rate (ADCR) plan provisions of the TCDRS
Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributions from both employee members and the County based on
the covered payroll of employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of the employer is
actuarially determined annually. The County contributed using the actuarially determined rate of 11.50o/o

for the months of the accounting year in 2013, and 12.10o/o for the months of the accounting year in 2014.

The contribution rate payable by the employee members for calendar years 2013 and 2014 is the rate of
7o/o âs adopted by the Commissioners' Court of the County. The employee contribution rate and the
County contribution rate may be changed by the Commissioners' Court of the County within the options
available in the TCDRS Act.
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C. AnnualPension Cost

The required contribution was determined as part of the December 31,2013 actuarial valuation using the
entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31,2013 included (a) 8.0
percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), and (b) projected salary increases of
4.9 percent. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.0 percent. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a ten-year period. The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31,
2013 was 20 years.

The County's annual pension cost and actual contributions for the years ended September 30,2014,2013
and 2012 were $821 ,223, $749,624, and $682,421, respectively. The County did not have a Net Pension
Obligation (NPO) at the end of any of those years.

D. Funding Sfafus and Funding Progress

As of December 31 ,2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 81.13 percent funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $19,170,055 and the actuarial value of assets was
$15,553,490, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $3,616,565. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $6,694,417, and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 54.02 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

II. POST.EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS

The County administers the Palo Pinto County Retiree Health Care Plan for retired employees

A. Plan Description

Pre-65 Plan - Any employee who meets the retirement eligibility requirements of the TCDRS, and who
leaves the employ of the County may, upon retirement, elect to remain on the County's group medical
until the retiree reaches age 65 or qualifies for Medicare. The County pays 100% of the total monthly
premium prescribed in the current health plan for retired participants who continue coverage. The retired
employee may continue coverage for dependents, if he or she pays the entire premium for the dependent.
Premiums are determined annually by estimating the amount needed to cover projected claims. The
benefit is subject to annual appropriations by the Commissioners' Court.

PosÊ65 PIan - Retirees may purchase a Medicare supplement policy without prescription drug coverage
for a reduced premium. Retirees have the option to purchase prescription drug coverage to which the
County does not contribute. Spouses may receive the same plan at retiree's expense. Premiums and
benefits are subject to change each year. Percent of premium paid by County is subject to change with
the intent of leaving the dollar amount of benefit the same. The benefit is subject to annual appropriations
by the Commissioners' Court.
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B. Normal Retirement Benefits

Retirement benefits are a defined benefit plan under TCDRS (see note 10). Members are eligible to retire
under TCDRS at age 60 or more with 8 years of vested service, at any time with a minimum of 30 years of
vested service, or any age plus years of service equaling 75.

C. Early Retirement Benefits

Members retiring under early retirement conditions (non-vested) are not eligible for retiree healthcare
benefits.

D. Defened Retirement Benefits

Members who may be vested and terminate employment, but do not apply for retirement benefits, are not
eligible for retiree health care benefits.

E. Benefits for Spouses / Children of Retired Employees

Currently, the spouse of a retiree is eligible to continue health care benefits until Medicare eligible.
Children of retirees are eligible to continue to receive health care benefits until age 26, meeting the
qualifications of dependent children described in the County's healthcare plan.

F. Disability Retirement Benefits

lf a member has 8 years or more of service and becomes disabled, the employee may be eligible for
disability retirement. lf a member has less than 8 years of service and the disability is work-related, the
member may be eligible for disability retirement.

G. Funding Policy and AnnualOPEB Cost

The County's annual other post-employment benefits (OPEB) cost is based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters
of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of accrual that is projected to recognize the
normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period
not to exceed thirty years.

The County had its first OPEB actuarial valuation performed for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2008
as required by GASB and another valuation completed for the year ended September 30, 2014. The
County's OPEB cost for the year ended September 30,2014 was as follows:

Annual Required Contribution
lnterest on OPEB obligation
Adjustment to ARC
Annual OPEB cost (expense) end of year
Net estimated employer contributions
lncrease (decrease) in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation - end of year

$ 390,196
62,840

(_58,22s)
394,811

( 139,541)
255,270

1,396,444
s1,651.714
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H. Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Sfafus

Actuarial Valuation Date
Actuarial Value of Assets
Actuarial Accrued Liabilities
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)
Funded Ratio
Annual Covered Payroll
UAAL as a Percentage of Annual Covered Payroll

lnflation Rate
lnvestment Rate of Return
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Amortization Period
Salary Growth
MedicalTrend

3.0% per annum
4.5o/o, net of expenses
Projected Unit Credit Cost Method
Level as a percentage of salary
Open 30 year period
3.0% per annum
lnitial rate of 9.0% declining to an
ultimate rate of 4.5o/o after 9 years

10t1t13
$
$3,792,108
$3,792,108

0.00%
$5,852,930

64.79o/o

L Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the County's
retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a set of actuarial
assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected. The projected unit credit method then
provides for a systematic funding for these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover
the cost of benefits being earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the accrued
liability.

Projections of health benefits are based on the plan as understood by the County and include the types of
benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between Palo Pinto County
and its employees to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ
methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities
and the actuarial value of assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
profitability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status and the annual
required contributions of the County's retiree health care plan are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required
schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information provides multi-year trend
information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The County offers its employees two deferred compensation plans created in accordance with lnternal
Revenue Code 457. The plans, available to all County employees on a voluntary basis, permit them to defer a
portion of their salaries until future years. The County does not make any contributions to the plans.

Deferred compensation is available to employees' beneficiaries in case of death. One plan is through the
National Association of Counties and its assets are administered by Nationwide Retirement Solutions, an
independent third party administrator. The second plan's assets are managed by ITT Hartford, an independent
administrator. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights purchased with
those amounts and all income attributed to those amounts, property or rights are solely the property and rights
of the participants.

13. JUDICIAL ASSESSMENT RECEIVABLES

At September 30, 2014, lhe County has not recorded the receivables from judicial assessments in the
accompanying financial statements; nor have they been recorded in the prior year. Though these amounts
are significant, the County has not determined the allowances for uncollectible amounts for recording them at
year end. Consequently, the effects on the financial statements of not including the judicial assessment
receivables are not reasonably determinable.

14. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES

The Governmental Activities' net position consisted of the following at September 30, 2014:

Net investment in capital assets $11.747.827

Restricted:
General Government
Administration of Justice
Public Safety
Corrections and Rehabilitation
Community and Economic Development
lnfrastructure and Environmental Services

Total restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

504,891
131 ,1 18

214,040
48,224
70,894

100
969.267

7.418.310

$20J3*104
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The Governmental Funds'fund balances consisted of the following at September 30, 2014:

Nonspendable:
Prepaids
lnventories

Total nonspendable

Restricted:
General Government
Administration of Justice
Public Safety
Corrections and Rehabilitation
Community and Economic Development
lnfrastructure and Environmental Services

Total restricted

Committed:
General Government
Health and Human Services
lnfrastructure and Environmental Services

Totalcommitted

Assigned:
PK roads
2014-15 budget deficit

Totalassigned

General
Fund

5,791

5.791

17,740

53,685
7't.425

Other
Governmental

Funds

$
760
760

504,891
131 ,1 18
208,249
47,464
70,894

100
962.716

Total
Governmental

Funds

504,891
131,118
214,040
47,464
70,894

100
968.s07

Unassigned 7,645,830 7,645,830

Totalfund balances $8*6srr!95 $1299fla $9p8t172

I5. NEWPRONOUNCEMENT

ln June 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No. 68 to
amend GASB Statements 27 and 50. The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014
and addresses accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are provided to the employees of state and
local government employers. This statement will affect the County's reporting of its governmental activities on
the government-wide statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, although the impact of
applying the statement is unknown.
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Revenues
Propefty taxes
Sales taxes
Mixed beverage tax
Licenses, fees and fines
Federal and state grants

lnmate revenue
lnterest earned
Other revenue

Total revenues 13,621,680 13,845,682 14,189,714

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

EXHIBIT B.I
(Page 1 of 2l

Variance With
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

$ 9,273,100
1,400,000

30,000
2,487,330

175,200
57,000
63,300

135,750

$ 9,273,100
1,400,000

30,000
2,506,766

220,073
57,000
63,300

295,443

$ 9,484,842
1,533,386

38,261
2,515,989

237,777
78,889
94,345

206,225

$ 211,742
133,386

8,261
9,223

17,704
21,889
31,045

(89,218)
344,032

15,714
728

21,O17

16,218
1 ,'t 09
8,837

17,396
3,070
1,414
6,1 09
2,598
2,242

12,653
10,358

312,881

3,555
2,276

30,922
19,995
17,511
30,545

Expenditures
29th District Court
Commissioners' Court
Constable
County Attorney
County Auditor
County Clerk
County Court
CounÇ Extension Service
County Treasurer
District Attorney
District Clerk
Election Administration
Emergency Management
Emergency Medical & Health Services
General Operations
Health Services
lnformation Technology
lnmate Contract
Jail and Detention
Justice of the Peace
Narcotics Unit
Public Works
Road and Bridge:

Precinct No. 1

Precinct No 2
Precinct No. 3
Precinct No. 4

Sheriff
Tax Assêssor-Col lector
Veterans' Administration

Total expenditures

374,360
44,618

428,034
245,983
232,796
292,O88
183,278
95,694

115,774
274,453
203,742
173,629
75,400

116,000
3,203,600

10,000
107,715
233,464

1,663,207
463,731
157,652
392,661

627,528
789,620
709,256
627,837

1,721,922
518,469

53,826

389,360
44,618

433,536
246,569
232,796
292,088
183,278
95,694

115,774
274,453
203,742
193,065
80,113

116,000
3,190,598

10,000
107,715
219,864

1,689,968
463,731
162,652
423,998

645,403
791,998
772,548
657,562

1,752,254
518,469

53,826

373,646
43,890

412,519
230,351
231,687
283,251
165,882
92,624

114,360
268,344
201,144
190,823
67,460

105,642
2,877,717

10,000
1 04,1 60
217,588

1,659,046
443,736
145,141
393,453

438,506
545,959
592,364
548,369

1,702,174
508,376

52,040

206,897
246,039
r 80,1 84
1 09,1 93
50,080
10,093

1,786
14,136,337 14,361,672 13,020,252 1,341,420

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures before other sources and (uses) (514,657) (s15,990)
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE .
GENERAL FUND
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Other sources and (uses):
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers out

Total other sources and (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning ofyear

Fund balances, end of year

Original Final
Budgeted Amounts

Variance With
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)Actual

5,000 6,333
(145,000)

108,742
(145,000)

102,409

(509,657)

7,548,291

(138,667)

(654,657)

7,548,291

1,133,204

7,548,291

5,000 (36,258) 102,409

1,787 ,861

$ 7,038,634 $ 6,893,634 $ 8,681,495 $ 1,787,861
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Annual budgets are adopted on the GflflP basis of accounting for all governmental funds except capital project

funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The County Judge is, by statute, the Budget Officer of the County and has the responsibility of preparing the

County's budget- Under the County's budgeting procedures, each department submits a budget request to the

County Judge. The County Judge reviews budget requests and holds informal hearings when needed' Before

October 1, a proposed budget is presented to the Commissioners' Court, A public hearing is then held and the

Commissioners' Court takes action on the proposed budget. Before determining the final budget, the

Commissioners' Court may increase or decrease the amounts requested by the various departments. Amounts

finally budgeted may not exceed the estimate of revenues and available fund balance.

Once the budget has been adopted by the Commissioners' Court, the County Auditor is responsible for

monitoring the expenditures of the various departments of the County to prevent expenditures from exceeding

budgeted appropriations and for keeping members of the Commissioners' Court advised of the conditions of

the various funds and accounts.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund. Any transfers of appropriations are first approved by the

Commissioners' Court. No amendments may be made without Commissioners' Court approval to the total

budget for each department within a fund. Thus, the legal level of budgetary control is at the department level.

No supplemental appropriations were required during the year'

40



PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS.
TEXAS COUNTY AND DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

Actuaríal
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

(b)

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
(¡_a)

Funded
Ratio
(a/b)

80.57o/o

79.82o/o

81.13To

Covered
Payroll

$ 6,121,549
6,338,220
6,694,417

EXHIBIT 8.2

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered Payroll
((b-a)/c)

51.57%
56.460/o

54.02o/o

12t31t2011
12t31t2012
12t31t2013

$ 13,092,992
14,150,456
15,553,490

$ 16,249,834
17,728,774
19,170,055

$ 3,156,842
3,578,318
3,616,56s
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EXHIBIT 8.3

PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS -
PALO PINTO COUNTY RETIREE HEALTH CARE PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2014

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

(b)

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funded
Ratio
(a/b)

Covered
Payroll

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered Payroll
((b-a)/c)(c)

3t31t2008
3t31t2011
10t1t2013

$ 2,767,074
3,323,771
3,792,108

$ 2,767,074
3,323,771
3,792,108

N/A
N/A

$ 5,852,930

N/A
N/A

64.79%

$ 0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Note: Valuations are performed every third year
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COMBI N I NG F I NANCI AL STATEM ENTS
AS SUPPL EMENTARY I NFORMATION

This supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of
additional analysis.



PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET. GENERAL FUND
SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

ASSETS
Cash
lnvestments
Receivables, net:

Property taxes
Sales tax
Accounts

Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
lnventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to others
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:

Unavailable property taxes

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted

Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances

$ 7,171,669 $ 2,351,791 $ 9,523,460

10

General
Fund

11t12t13t14
Road

and Bridge

Fund

EXHIBIT C.1

Total

$ 354,131

6,000,000

153,537
28',t,854

126,082
71,064

182,186
2,815

149,151

2,083,964

28,497

5,785
24,779

59,615

$ 503,282
8,083,964

182,034
281,854
131 ,867
95,843

182,186
62,430

$

$ 366,832
12't,703

9,454
22,900

1 19,850

19,192
486,682
140,895

9,454
22,900

$ $

520,889 139 042 659,931

153,537 28 497 182,O34

185,001

5,791
71,425

59,615

713,833
1,410,804

244,616
5,791

71,425
713,833
645,8306,235,026 7

6,497,243 2,184,252 8,681,495

$ 7,171,669 $ 2,351,791 $ 9,523,460
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Mixed beverage tax
Licenses, fees and fines
Federal and state grants
lnmate revenue
lnterest earned
Other revenue

Total revenues

10

General
Fund

$ 8,011,807
1,533,386

38,261
1,822,952

224,612
78,889
72,781

195,267
11,977,955

373,646
43,890

412,519
230,351
231 ,687
283,251
165,882
92,624

114,360
268,344
201,144
190,823
67,460

105,642
2,877,717

10,000
1 04,1 60
217,588

1,659,046
443,736
145,14',1

393,453

1,702,',174
508,376

52,040

11t12t13t14
Road

and Bridge
Fund

$ 1,473,035

693,037
1 3,1 65

21,564
10,958

2,211,759

438,506
545,959
592,364
548,369

2,125,198

86,561

102,408

102,408

188,969

1,995,283

EXHIBIT C-2

Total

$ 9,484,842
1,533,386

38,261
2,515,989

237,777
78,889
94,345

206,225
14,',t85,714

373,646
43,890

4',t2,519
230,351

231,687
283,251
165,882
92,624

114,360
268,344
201,144
190,823
67,460

105,642
2,877,717

10,000
104,160
217,588

1,659,046
443,736
145,141
393,453

438,506
545,959
592,364
548,369

'1,702,174

508,376
52,040

13,020 ,252

't,169,462

108,742
(145,000)

(36,258)

1,133,204

7,548,291

Expenditures
29th District Court
Commissioners' Court
Constable
CounÇ Attorney
County Auditor
County Clerk
County Court
County Extension Service
County Treasurer
District Attorney
District Clerk
Election Administration
Emergency Management
Emergency Medical & Health Services
General operations
Health services
lnformation Technology
lnmate contract
Jail and detention
Justice ofthe Peace
Narcotics Unit
Public Works
Road and Bridge:

Precinct No. 1

Precinct No. 2
Precinct No. 3
Precinct No. 4

Sheriff
Tax Assessor-Collector
Veteran's Administration

Total expenditures r 0,895,054

Excess of revenues over expenditures before other
sources and (uses)

Other sources and (uses):
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfer out

Tolal other sources and (uses)

Net change ¡n fund balances

Fund balances, beginning ofyear
Fund balances, end of year

1,082,901

6,334
(145,000)
(138,666)

944,235

5,553,008
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s 6,497,243 $ 2,184,252 $ 8,681,495



PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES . BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2014

Final
Budget

Revenues
Property texes
Sales taxes
Mixed beverage tax
Licenses, fees and fines
Federal and state grants
lnmate revenue
lnterest earned
Other revenue

Total revenues

General (10)

$ 7,832,600
1,400,000

30,000
1,810,436

220,073
57,000
55,000

182,173
1'l,587,282

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Actual

$ 8,011,807
1,533,386

38,261
1,822,952

224,612
78,889
72,781

195,267
11,977,955

$ 179,207
133,386

8,261
12,516
4,539

21,889
17,781
13,094

390,673

Expenditures
29th District Court
Commissioners' Court
Constable
County Attorney
County Auditor
County Clerk
Coung Court
County Extension Service
County Treasurer
District Attorney
District Clerk
Election Administration
Emergency Management
Emergency Medical & Health Services
General operations
Health services
lnformation Technology
lnmate contract
Jail and detention
Justice ofthe Peace
Narcotics Unit
Public Works
Road and Bridge:

Precinct No. 1

Precinct No. 2
Precinct No. 3
Precinct No. 4

Sheriff
Tax Assessor-Collector
Veteran's Administration

Total expenditures

389,360
44,618

433,536
246,569
232,796
292,088
183,278
95,694

115,774
274,453
203,742
193,065

80,1 1 3
116,000

3,190,598
10,000

107,715
219,864

1,689,968
463,731
162,652
423,998

373,646
43,890

412,519
230,351
231,687
283,251
165,882
92,624

114,360
268,344
201,144
190,823
67,460

105,642
2,877,717

10,000
104,160
217,588

1,6s9,046
443,736
145,141
393,453

15,714
728

21,0't7
16,218

1,109
8,837

17,396
3,070
1,414
6,1 09
2,598
2,242

12,653
10,358

312,881

3,555
2,276

30,922
19,995
17,511
30,545

50,080
10,093

1,752,254
518,469

1,702,174
508,376

52 040
l0 895 054

1,082,901

6,334
(14s,000)
(138,666)

944,235

5,553,008

53 826 786
11,494,161 599,107

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures before other sources and (uses)

Other sources and (uses):
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfer out

Total other sources end (uses):

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end ofyear

93.121 989,780

6,333
(145,000)

1

(138,667) 1

(45,546)

5,553,008

989.781

45

$ 5,507,462 g 6,497,243 $ 989,781



EXHIBIT C-3

Road and Bridge (11112113114) Total

Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

(3,2e3)
13,165

13,264
(102,312)

(46,641)

206,897
246,039
1 80,1 84
1 09,1 93

F¡nal

Budget

$ 9,273,100
1,400,000

30,000
2,506,766

220,073
57,000
63,300

295,443
13,845,682

389,360
44,618

433,536
246,569
232,796
292,088
183,278
95,694

115,774
274,453
203,742
193,065
80,1 13

116,000
3,190,598

10,000
107,715
219,864

1,689,968
463,731
162,652
423,998

645,403
791,998
772,548
657,562

1,752,254
518,469

53,826
14 361 672

(51 5,990)

6,333
(145,000)
(138,667)

(654,657)

7,548,291

$ 6,893,634

$ 9,484,842
1,533,386

38,261

2,515,989
237,777

78,889
94,345

206,225

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

$ 211,742
133,386

8,261
9223

17,704
21,889
31,045

(89,218)

344,032

15,714
728

21,017
16,218
1,109
8,837

17,396
3,070
1,414
6,109
2,598
2,242

12,653
10,358

312,881

3,555
2,276

30,922
19,995
17,511
30,545

206,897
246,039
1 80,1 84
1 09,1 93
50,080
10,093
1,786

'1,34't,420

Actual

$ 1,440,500 $ 1,473,035 $ 32,535

696,330 693,037
1 3,1 65

8,300 21,564
113,270 10,958

2,258,400 2,211,759 14J89,714

373,646
43,890

412,519
230,351
231,687
283,251
165,882
92,624

114,360
268,344
201,144
190,823
67,460

105,642
2,877,717

10,000
1 04,1 60
217,588

1,659,046
443,736
145,141
393,4s3

645,403
791,998
772,548
657,562

438,506
545,959
592,364
548,369

438,506
545,959
592,364
548,369

1,702,174
508,376

52,040
13,020,2522,867,511 2,125,198 742.313

86,561 695,672

102,408 102,408

'102 408 102,408

188,969

1,995,283

798,080

(609,1 1 1 ) 1,169,462 1,685,452

't08,742
(145,000)

102,409

(36,258) 102,409

1,133,204

7,548,291

1,787,861(609,111)

1,995,283

$1 172 $ 2,184,252 $ 798,080

46

$ 8,681,495 $ 1,787,861



PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,20'14

ASSETS
Cash
lnvestments
Receivables, net:

Occupancy taxes
Accounts

Due from other funds
lnventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Due to others
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Special Revenue Funds

24
Marlow

Cemetery
Trust

25

County
Attorney

30

District
Attorney

Fees

32

Tax
Assessor-
Collector

11

760

$ 48,962

20

$ 2,125 $ s1 $ 1,508 $ 2,896

640

$ 2,125 $ 69r $ 1,508 $ 2,919

23

$ $s0$ $ $

738
738 50

760
47,464

48,224

2.075
691 1,508 2,919

$ 48,962

2.919

$ 2,919

47



EXHIBIT C4
(Page I of2)

Soecial Revenue Funds
35

Hotel/
Motel
Fund

42

District
Attorney
Forfeited

45

Sheriff
Forfeited

48

District
Attorney

State

49
Election

Services
Fund

50

County
Clerk
PRF

51

District
Clerk
PRF

52

Preservation
of Records

$ 38,940 $ 1s,923 $ s7,s28 $ 9,361 $ 8,097

31,954
3,135

$ 70,894 $ 1s,923 $ s7,s28 $ 9,361

$ 33,686
301,356

12,483

8 11,232 $ 347,525

$ $400$

400

$ 3s,695 $ 51,578

53

$ s1,890

$

312

$ $ 2,067 $ $

067

572

$ 9,361

11,232 347,12570,894 13,856 57,528 35,748 51,890

$ 70,894

70,894 13,856

$ 1s,923

11,232 347,125

$ 11,232 I347,525

35,748 s1,890

$ 35,748 $ s1,890
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2014

ASSETS
Cash
lnvestments
Receivables, net:

Occupancy taxes
Accounts

Due from other funds
lnventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to others
Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

$ 9,745 $ 56,851 $ $ 79,406 $ 18,417

Special Revenue Funds
53

Juvenile
Case

Management

$ 10,318

$

54

Law

Library
Fund

55

Courthouse
Security

Fund

56

Justice
Technology

Fund

57

Justice
Court

Security Fee

30

543

5,046

145,739

42

1.119
13

129
56

552455

$ 1s1,946 $ 80,014 $ 18,559

$ 1,32e $ 231

994
$ I 2,617

1,329

10,318 55,977 150,721 80,014

1,225 2,617

15,942

't0,318 55,977 150 721

$ 10,31 8 $ 57,306 $ 151,946

15,942

$ 18,559
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EXHIBIT C4
(Page 2 of 2)

Debt Service
Fund Capital Projects Funds

58

Employee
Fund

62

Texas
Capital
Fund

70

Texas
Capital
Fund

$ 100

$

72

Dempsey
Facility

$'17s,849
150,740

$

326,589
326,589

74

Capital

lmprovement
Fund

73

HAVA
Fund

76

Sewer
Grant
Fund

Total

Other
Governmental

Funds

$ 3,363 $

355

$ 4,131 $ 16 $

$ 16

11,287

g 11,287 $

658,503
597,835

31,954
14,956

16,309

760

$ 1,320,317

18,336

1,566

738

$

382

_$_9t19_- T - T-lõõ- "rr-æ- rul_

$3s5$ $ $

11,287 20 640

100
760

962,716
336,20116

r00

$ 3,745 $ - $ 100 $326,589 $4,131 $

16 1,299,677

16 g 11,287 $ 1,320,317
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2014

Special Revenue Funds

Commissary

24

Marlow
Cemetery

Trust

25

County
Attorney

$

5,061

30

District
Attorney

Fees

32

Tax
Assessor-
Collector

20

Revenues
Occupancy tax
Licenses, fees and fines
Federal and state grants

Commissary revenue
lnterest earned
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital projects

Commissary
County Attorney
County Clerk
Courthouse security
Debt Service - principal
District Attorney
General operations
Hotel/motel tax
Public works
Sheriff
Vending expenditures

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures before other source

Other source:

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year
Fund balances, end of year

$

41j52

41,'t52

$ $$

8

5

213

15

s 5,061 228

27,943

250

27,943

13,209 (245)

250 5,048

5,048

13 I 228

13,209

35,015
I 48,224

(245) 13

678

228

691$
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EXHIBIT C-5
(Page I of2)

35

Hotel/
Motel

Fund

District

Forfeited

45

Sheriff
Forfeited

48
District

Attorney
State

Revenue Funds

49
Election

Services
Fund

42 50

County
Clerk
PRF

51

District
Clerk
PRF

52

Preservation
of Records

Attorney

$ 99,184 $

278

$$$$ $

6,711 145,375

29 1,959

500

10,240 147,334

$

9,1 94

9,028 10,609

166 1,37982

26,047
26,129

3

99 462

13,788

103,6s0

3.030

103,650

(4,188) 12,341 21,85s

11.988

136,770

28,174

(657)

6,600 44,489

3,030 28,174 6,600 136,770

3,640 10,564 9,194 (32,501)

$ 70,894 $ 13,856

(6s7) 3,640 10,564

9,446 7,592 336,561

(4,1 88)

75,082

12,341

1,515

21,855

35,673

9,194

26,554

$ 35,748

(32,501)

84,391

$ 57,528
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

$$$$

53

Juvenile
Case

10,302

16

54

Law

Library
Fund

15,758

285

Revenue Funds
55 56

Courthouse Justice
Security Technology
Fund Fund

$

22,229 15,570

1,s61 417

57

Justice
Court

Security Fee

3,527

Revenues
Occupancy tax
Licenses, fees and fines
Federal and state grants

Commissary revenue
lnterest earned
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital projects

Commissary
County Attorney
County Clerk
Courthouse secur¡ty

Debt Service - principal
District Attorney
General operations
Hotel/motel tax
Public works
Sheriff
Vending expenditures

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures before other source

Other source:
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year
Fund balances, end ofyear

90

10,318 16,043 23,790

45,715

11,728

11,728 45,715 13,533

10,318 4,3't5 (21,925) 2,454

15,987

13,533

3,617

3,107

3,107

510

10,318

$ 10,31 I

4,315 (21,92s) 510

15,432

$ 15,942

51,662

$ 55,977
172,646

$ 1s0,721

53



Debt Service
Fund

EXHIBIT C-5
(Page 2 of 2)

Total
Other

Governmental
Funds

58 62

Texas
Capital
Fund

70

Texas
Capital
Fund

72

Dempsey
Facility

74

Capital
lmprovement

Fund

73

HAVA

Fund

76

Sewer
Grant
Fund

Employee
Fund

$ $$$$

6

$

2,308
45,440
47,748

$ $

200,356

1j20

b 1120 200,356

266,156 27,983

172,373

99,1 84

244,39'l
227,856
41j52
10,011

23,333
23,333

127 792

750,386

277 294,416
27,943

5,048
136,770

48,822

23,333
41,962
76,600

103,6s0
172,373

3,030
3,527

23,333

23,333 277 266,156 200,356 937,474

1,338 47,471 6 (265,036) (187,088)

125

(182,e63)

1,482,640

1,338

100

$ 100

47,471

279,118 

-

$ 326,58e J 4-;131 $16$ 8 1,299,677

(265,036)

265,052
$

54



PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES.
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

40
District

Attorney
Seized
Funds

79

Sheriffs
Department

Civil
Process

80

Tax
Collection

81

Auto
Registration

82

Justice of
the Peace
Precinct #2

Assets
Cash
lnvestments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to others

Total liabilities

$ ô0,192 $ 8,026 $ 188,100 $ 393,815 $ 3,179

270

$ 60,192 $ 8,026 $ 188,100 $ 393,815 $ S,¿¿g

$ $ 14,191
60,192 173 909

$ 60,192 $ 8,026 $ 188,100

$ I,989
6,037

$ 33,066
360,749

$ 393,815

$ 3,449

$ 3,449

55



8885

EXHIBIT C.6
(Page 1 of2)

9383

Justice of
the Peace
Precinct #3

84

Justice of
the Peace
Precinct #4

Justice of
the Peace
Precinct #5

$ 15,091

1,011

87

County
Treasurer
(Special)

County
Clerk

89

Juvenile
Rest

County
Clerk

$ 8,068 $ 3,195

190988

g 104,437 $ 38,842 $ sgo g 212,013

24,346

$ 9,056 $ g,SAS $ 16,102 $ 128,783 $ 38,842 $ 330 $ 212,013

$ 9,056 $ 3,385 $ 16,102 $ $ 38,842 $ $2,148
126,635

200
130

315
211,698

$ 9,056 $ 3,385 $ 16,102 $ 128,783 $ 38,842 $ sso $ 212,013

56



PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABIL¡TIES -
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

94

County
Attorney

Assets
Cash
lnvestments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds

Total assets

$ 6,646

95

District
Clerk

96

District
Attorney

97

Public
Works

$ 582,365
50,366

$ 6,505 $

$ 6,646 g 632,731 $ 6,505 $

80

80

Liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to others

Total liabilities

$ $ 4,301
628,430

$ $
6,646 6,505

$ 6,646 $ 632,731 $ 6,505 $

80

80
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EXHIBIT C.6
(Page 2 of 2)

98

lnmate
Trust

110

Deferred
Compensation Totals

$ 2,125 $ $ 1,633,009
527,839

2,459
24,346

477,473

S 2,125 $ +tz,+t3 $ 2,187,653

$ $ $ 127,O44
2,060,6092,125 477,473

s 2,'t25 ï CZt,Ct3 $ 2,187,653
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE. COMMISSARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

Revenues
Commissary revenue
Phone card revenue
Over-the-counter revenue
Other income

Total revenues

Expenditures
Commissary:

Operations and management
Phone card expense
Commissary supplies
Over-the-counter supplies
lndigent supplies
lnmate education
Cable TV
Miscellaneous expense
Capitalexpense

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end ofyear

EXHIBIT C.7

$ 27,575
12,694

880
3

41 152

3,600
4,228
5,428

470
5,588

423
576

1,713
5,917

27 943

13,209

35,015

$ 48,224
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EocIIrI, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FIeuIruc ,PC
CERrrneo PueLrc AccouNrANrs

4110 KEll Blvo., Seco¡lo Fr-oon P.O. Box 750
Wrcnrrn F¡lls, TexRs 76307-0750
PH. (940) 766-5550 . Fnx (940)766-5778

MrcHRel D. Eocr¡r, CPA
Dnvro L. PnRrunru, CPA, CFE

A. Pnul Fleulnc, CPA
J. Mnnx Fleulruc, CPA

lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To The Honorable County Judge and County Commissioners
Palo Pinto County, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Palo Pinto County, Texas
(County) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 20,2015.

lnternal Gontrol Over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported u nder Goye rn me nt Au d iti ng Sta n d a rd s.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

tay", Tnnhm*n ,^rT, fun Pc

EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC

Wichita Falls, Texas
January 20,2015
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lndependent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
lnternal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

To The Honorable County Judge and County Commissioners
Palo Pinto County, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Palo Pinto County, Texas' (County) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on the County's major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2014. The
County's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

M a n ag e m enú's Respo n si bi I ity

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

A u d ito r's Res po ns i b i I ity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Sfafes, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizaflons. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

ln our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program for the year
ended September 30, 2014.
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Report on lnternal Control Over Gompliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the County's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
complíance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material u¡eakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

ártçn, Prtnbr'r+.¡, fu"g è, funÀ",?u

Wichita Falls, Texas
January 20,2015

EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

Unmodified opinions were issued on the financial statements, except for the Governmental Activities' and
General Fund's financial statements, which were qualified opinions since the judicial receívables are not
reported.

The audit disclosed no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the financial
statements in the Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing
Sfandards.

The audit disclosed no noncompliance that is material to the financial statements.

The audit disclosed no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major
federal award program in the Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on lnternal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

An unqualified opinion was issued on compliance for major programs

The audit disclosed no audit findings that are required to be reported in this schedule under OMB Circular
A-133.

Major program is as follows:

14.228 Community Development Block Grant

The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000

The County was classified as a low-risk auditee in the context of OMB Circular A-133.

B. Findinqs Relatinq to the Financial Statements which are Required to be Reported
in Accordance with Generallv Accepted Goyernmenf AudrTrnq Standards

None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

None
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
CORREGTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI4

There were no findings or questioned costs for the year ended September 30,2014; consequently, a corrective
action plan is not required.
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
SUMi'IARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2OI4

There were no prior year findings or questioned costs
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EXHIBIT D-1
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PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Federal Expenditures
Contract CFDA and
Number Number Indirect Costs

U.S.Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed Through Texas Department of Agriculture:  

Community Development Block Grant/
  Texas Capital Fund - Loan Program

 (outstanding loan balance) 711022 14.228 494,666$        

Community Development Block Grant
 Sewer Grant 712270 14.228 200,356          

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 695,022          

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Program:

Bureau of Justice Assistance:
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 2012-AP-BX-0173 16.606 1,160              

Total U.S. Department of Justice 1,160              

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed Through Texas Department of Public Safety:

Fire Management Assistance Grant FM 2814 TX 97.046 31,894            

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 31,894            

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 728,076$        

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/ Program Title



PALO PINTO COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Note 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal
awards of Palo Pinto County, Texas (County). The County's reporting entity is defined in Note I to
the County's financial statements. All financial assistance received directly from federal agencies,
as well as federal financial awards passed through other government agencies, is included on this
schedule.

Note 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. The Governmental Fund types are accounted for using a current financial resources
measurement focus. Most federal grant funds were accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund, a
component of the Governmental Fund types. With this measurement focus, only current assets and
current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e., revenues and otherfinancing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and
other fínancing uses) in net current assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for the Governmental Fund types. This basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to
accrual, i.e., both measurable and available, and expenditures in the accounting period in which the
fund liability is incurred, if measurable.

Federal grant funds are ordinarily considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under
the provisions of the grant and, accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as
deferred revenues until earned.

Note 3 - CONTINGENCIES

The County participates in various federal programs, on both a direct and state pass-through basis.
ln connection with these programs, the County is required to comply with specific terms and
agreements as well as applicable federal laws and regulations. Such compliance is subject to
review and audit by the grantors and their representatives.

Since such programs are subject to audit or review, the possibility of disallowed expenditures exists.
ln the event of any disallowance of claimed expenditures, the County expects the resulting liability to
be immaterial.
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